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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
TO,
THE MEMBERS OF WHIZDM FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED
Report on the audit of the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial staterents of Whizdm Finance Private Limited, which comprise the
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the cash flow statement for the year then
ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Auditor’s Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair
view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as al March 31, 2024, and its Profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We condueted our audil in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of
the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's
Respensibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together
wilh the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Lthics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thercon

The Company’s Board of Directors 1s responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report
including Annexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and
Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the [inancial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility s to read the other information and, in
doing so. consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

[f, based on the work performed on the other information obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance (TCWG) for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”™) with respect to the preparation of these financial stalements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act,
read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies, making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

[n preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Statement

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with 8As will always detect a material misslatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive Lo those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audil in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the eircumstances. Under section 143(3)(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place
and the operating effectiveness of such controls;

»  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management,

»  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conelusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. [However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern; and

e [Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.
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Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Standalone Financial Statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the Standalone
Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i)
planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of
any identified misstatements in the Standalone Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
dentify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”™) issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of sub section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, We give in the Annexure A
statements on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the order, to the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtaned all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books.

(¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the cash flow statement deall with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) Inour opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2024 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as March 31, 2024 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(N With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company
and the operating effectiveness of such conlrols, refer to our separate report in "Annexure B". Our report
expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal
financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements,

(g) Based on our audit, we report that the provisions of Section 197, read with Schedule V of the Acl, are
not applicable to the Company for the year ended March 31, 2024, since the Company is not a public
company as defined under 2(71) of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under Section 197(16) of the Act, is
not applicable.

{(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

1. The Company does not have any pending litigation which would impact the financial position as at
March 31, 2024

il. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any malterial foreseeable losses;
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iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company;

iv. (a)

The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as

disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the Company from any
person or entity, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties™), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by
or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security
or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on audit procedures which we considered reasonable and appropriate in the

circumstances, nothing has come to their notice that has caused them to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement,

v. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year ended March 31, 2024,

vi. The reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, is applicable
from April 1, 2023.

Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has utilized accounting
software for maintaining its books of account. This software includes a feature for recording an
audit trail (edit log) facility, and it has been cperational throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from April 1, 2023,
reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on preservation of
audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record retention is not applicable for the financial
year ended March 31, 2024.

For S C Mehra & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Reg No.: 106105W/W100.

Rishit Jain
Partner e
Mem. No.: 238242

Date: May 21, 2024
Place: Bengaluru

UDIN: 24238242BKFQTS5645
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Annexure A: To the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Whizdm Finance
Private Limited on the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024,

Report on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020
(“the Order”).

With reference to the Annexure A referred to in the Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of the Company
on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024, we report the following;

i. a). A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details of Property, plant and equipment required under paragraph 3(i)(a), (b) and (¢) of the order.

B) According to the information and explanations given o us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company does not have any intangible assets.

b)  The property, plant and equipment have not been physically verified by the management during the
year but there is a regular program of verification which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard
to the size of the Company and nature of its assets.

¢)  According to the information and explanations given to us, since no immovable property is held by
the Company, this clause is not applicable.

d)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment during
the year.

€)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the Company for
holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and
rules made thereunder.

il. a) TheCompany does not hold any inventory. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company,

b)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has been sanctioned
working capital limits in excess of 5 crores, in aggregate, at points of time during the year, from
banks on the basis of security of current assets. In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given o us, the periodic returns or statements comprising stock statements, book debt
statements, statements on ageing analysis of the debtors and other stipulated financial information
filed by the Company with such banks are in agreement with the unaudited books of account of the
Company of the respective quarters and no material discrepancies have been observed.

iii. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not made any investments, provided guarantee or security or
granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited
liability partnerships or any other parties.

v, In our opinion and the explanation given to us the Company has complied with the provision of section
185 and 186 of Companies Act, 2013 in respect of making investment, in respect of grant of loans and
providing guarantees and securities as applicable.

v The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the
Companics (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended), Accordingly, the provisions of clause
3(v) of the Order are not applicable.
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vi. According to the information and explanations given lo us, the Central Government has not prescribed
the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act for the services provided by it.
Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

vil. a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including Provident
Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Goods and Service Tax,
Value Added Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Cess and other material statutory dues to applicable
authorities.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service Tax,
Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or other statutory
dues were in arrears as at March 31, 2024 for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable.

viil, According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not swrrendered or disclosed any transactions, previously
unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as
income during the year.

ix. a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans and borrowing or in
the payment of interest thereon to any lender,

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or
financial institution or government or government authority.

¢) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the Company has
obtained term loans during the year. Term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans
were obtained.

d) According to the information and explanations given lo us and on an overall examination of the
balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for
long-term purposes by the Company.

¢) The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures (as
defined under the act) during the year ended March 31, 2024, Accordingly, reporting under clause
3(ix)(e) & () is not applicable.

x. a) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment of shares or private
placement of partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year ended March 31, 2024.
Accordingly. reporting under clause 3(x)(b) is not applicable.

X1, a) Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the information and
explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported
during the course of the audit.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of Section
143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

¢) Based on the information and explanations provided to us, the Company does not have a vigil
mechanism and is not required to have a vigil mechanism as per the Act or SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,
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xii. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable,

xiii, The Company is a private limited Company and accordingly the requirements as stipulated by the
provisions of Section 177 of the Act are not applicable to the Company. In our opinion and according to
the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of records of the
Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section 188 of the Act where
applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by
the applicable accounting standards.

xiv. In our opinion and based on the information and explanations provided to us, the Company does not have
an internal audit system and is not required to have an internal audit system as per Section 138 of the Act.
Accordingly, clause 3(xiv)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

xv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors and hence,
provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

xvi, @) The Company is required to and has been registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934 as a Non-Systemically Important Non-Banking Financial Company (“NBFC™) not
accepling public deposits (NBFC-ND-SI) vide certificate of Registration No. N-02-00317.

b) The Company has conducted non-banking financial activities during the year and the Company holds
a valid Certificate of Registration from the RBI as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the
RBI. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(¢) of the Order is not applicable to the Company,

d) Based on the information and explanations provided by the management of the Company, the Whizdm
group (“the group”) does not have any CIC. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

xvii. The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately preceding financial year,

xviii. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly this clause is not
applicable.

xix. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing
and expected dales of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements. our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans
and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report
that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when
they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheel date. We, however, stale that this is not
an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the
facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
linbilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the
Company as and when they fall due.

xx. The requirements as stipulated by the provisions of Section 135 are not applicable to the Company.
Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.
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xxi. This being an audit of standalone financial statements, clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable.

For S C Mehra & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 106 105W/W100305

Rishit Jain
Partner
Mem. No.: 238242

Date: May 21, 2024
Place: Bengaluru

UDIN: 24238242BKFQTS5645
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“Annexure B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Whizdm Finance
Private Limited on the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024,

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013,

Independent Auditor’s Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the standalone financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-Section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Whizdm Finance Private Limited as of
March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on
that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Finaneial Controls over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies
Act, 2013,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audil. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and
deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance aboul whether adequate
ternal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
control system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and operating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend upon on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over Financial Reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over [inancial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that,
n reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company:
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary Lo permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
Company are being made only in accordance with authonzations of management and directors of the Company;
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and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use,
or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility
of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us-, the Company has, in
all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal
financial controls over financial reporting-were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
issues by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For S C Mehra & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Reg No.: 106105W/ W100305

Rishit Jain
Partner
Mem. No.: 238242

Date: May 21, 2024
Place: Bengaluru

UDIN: 24238242BKFQTS5645
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Non-Banking Financial Companies Auditors’ Report for the year ended March 31, 2024

The Board of Directors,
Whizdm Finance Private Limited
No 17/1, Kadubeesanahalli Outer Ring Road Bangalore-560087

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Whizdm Finance Private Limited (“the Company”),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Statement of
Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the financial statements™).

As required by the “Non-Banking Financial Companies Auditor’s Report (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016” issued
by Reserve Bank of India (RBI) vide notification no. DNBS.PPD.03/66.15.001/2016-17 dated September 29,
2016 on the matters specified in para 3(A) and 3(C) of Chapter-II of the said Directions to the extent applicable
to the company and according to the information and explanations given to us for the purpose of audit, we report
that:

L. The Company had been granted registration under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934
on 28" of June 2019 vide Certificate of Registration No. N — 02-00317.

II.  The Company is entitled to continue to hold such registration in terms of its asset/ income pattern as on
March 31, 2024.

IlI.  The Company is meeting the requirement of net owned funds applicable to an Investment Credit
Company as laid down in Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company
—Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023

IV.  The Board of Directors of the Company, in its meeting held on April 04, 2023, has passed resolution for
non-acceptance of any public deposits for the Financial Year 2023-24.

V. The Company has not accepted any public deposits during the financial year 2023-24,

VI The financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 have been prepared
in accordance with the prudential norms relating to income recognition, accounting standards, asset
classification and provisioning for bad and doubtful debts as applicable to it in terms Master Direction —
Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company —Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 -
read with RBI Circular - DOR.STR.REC.68/21.04.048/2021-22 dated November 12, 2021.

M/s SC Mehra & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm registration number: 106105W / W100305

Rishit Jain
Partner
Membership No: 238242

Place: Bangalore
Date: May 21, 2024

UDIN: 24238242BKFQTR8566

Office: Hulkul Kubera, No.17, 3™ Floor, Lalbagh Road, Bengaluru 560027, Karnataka, India,
Contact No.: +91 9844660630, Mail: rishit.jain@scmassociates.in, www.semassociates.in
HO: Mumbai, Branches: Delhi | Ahmedabad | Bangalore | Chennai | Indore | Hyderabad | Jaipur |
Jodhpur | Nagpur| Pune [Thane | Bhiwandi |



Whizdm Finance Private Limited
Balance sheet as at March 31, 2024

(Al amounts are in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except share data and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders' funds
Share capital 3

3 1,043.96 61877

Reserves and surplus 4 64.604.19 16.147.03
Total shareholders’ funds 65,648.15 16,765.80
Non- current liabilities _
Long-term borrowings 5 41,492.02 5,985.04
Long-term provisions 6 2.06233 1.302.64
Total non-current liabilities 43,554.35 7.287.68
Current liabilities
Short-term borrowings 7 1,27.854 87 20,076 20
Trade payables 8

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 4383 -

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 3,796.36 43147
Other current liabilities 9 3,162.63 36735
Short-term provisions 10 793.17 91 59
Total current liabilities 1.35,650.86 20,966.61
Total liabilities 1,79.205.21 28,254.29
TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES 2.44,853.36 45,020.09
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, Plant and Equipment and intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment 11 853 302
Deferred tax asset (net) 12 21186 29132
Long-term loans and advances 13 7585508 5,032.11
Other non-current assets 14 - 175.00
Total non-current assets 76.075.47 S.501.45
Curreat assets
Cash and cash equivalents {5 39,509 39 6.679 33
Loans and advances 13 123925 13 3211225
Other current assets 534337 727.06
Total current assets 1.68.777.89 39,518.64
TOTAL ASSETS 2.44.853.36 45,020.09
Summary of significant accounting policies 21

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date

For S C Mehra & Associates LLP

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors vl

Chartered Accountants Whizdm Finance Priy,

[CAL Firm registration number: 106105W / W 100305

Rishit Jain
Partner

Director (CE0
Membership No: 238242

DIN: 00931994

M

P

' Ankit Kumar Jan
Company Secretary

Place: Bengaluru
Datc: May 21, 2024

Place: Bengaluru
Dale. May 21, 2024



Whizdm Finance Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except share data and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

INCOME

Revenue from operations 16 47,123.90 6.986 .60

Other income 17 1,047.77 126 .70

Total income (i) 48,171.67 7,113.30

EXPENSES

Employee benefit expenses 18 1,309.41 743 .58

Finance costs 19 13,661 40 2,264 94

Provision on loans and advances 20 8.795 60 1,708.90

Depreciation 21 235 5.18

Other expenses 22 19,198.94 2,140.22

Total expenses (ii) 42.967.70 6,862.82

Profit before tax [(iii)=(i)-(ii)] 5,203.97 250.48

Tax expenses

Current tax expense 1,242.16 313.40

Deferred tax expense/(credit) 79.45 (248 40)

Total tax expense (iv) 1,321.61 65.00

Profit for the year |(v)=(iii)~(iv)] 3.882.36 185.48

Earnings per equity share:

Basic and diluted 23 4343 3.93

Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date

For S C Mehra & Associates LLP ! For and on behalf of Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Whizdm Finance Private Limited

ICAI Firm registration number: 106105W / W 100305

Rishit Jain
Partner
Membership No: 238242

Ankit Kumar Jain
Company Secretary

Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 21, 2024 Date: May 21, 2024



Whizdm Finance Private Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2024

(All amounts are in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except share data and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31 2024 March 31 2923
A. Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before exceptional items and tax 5,20397 250.48
Adjustments:
Depreciation 235 518
Net (gain) on sale of mutual funds (971 16) (125 44)
Provision on Loans and Advances including write offs 8.795 .60 1.708 .90
Interest income on fixed deposits 163.95) (1.26)
Operating profit before working capital changes 12,966.83 1,837.86
Movements in working capital :
(Increase) in loans and advances (1,69.832.36) (28.860 48)
(Increase) in other assets (4,44131) (37210
Increase in trade payable 3,408.73 29409
Increase in other liabilities 2,79528 30545
Lncrease in provisions 107 34 4491
Cash used in operations (1,54,995.49) (26,950.28)
Income tax paid {net of refunds) (148730 (313 40)
Net cash flows used in operating activities (A) (1,56,482.79) (27,263.68)
B. Cash flows from investing activities
Investments in bank deposits (22,433.64 (122)
Redemption of fixed deposits 20,538 24 2897
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (7.85) -
Purchase of investments (2,13,781.71) (23,816 69)
Proceeds from sale/maturity of current investments 214752 87 24.44123
Interest income on fixed deposits 63.93 1.26
Net cash flow (used in)/from investing activities (B) (868.16) 653,55
C. Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of equity shares (including securities premium) 45.000.00 10.800 01
Proceeds from borrowings (other than debt securities) 1,28,128 80 30,500 00
Repayment of borrowings (other than debt securities) (49,129 30) (11,190.26)
Proceeds from issue of debt securities 81,200.00 2.100.00
Redemption of debt securities (16.913.90) (24500
Net cash flows from financing activities (C) 1,88,285.61 29,759.75
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 30,934.66 3,149.62
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the vear 6.679.33 3.529.71
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 37,613.99 6,679.33
Components of casl and cash equivalents
Balance with banks in current account 3761399 65,67933
Total cash and cash equivalents {Refer Note 15) 37,613.99 6,679.33

Summary of significant accounting policies (Refer Note 2.1)
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial staternents

As per our report of even date

For S C Mehra & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm registration number: 106105W / W 100305

o H..—-—""""—-——.

Partner
Membership No: 238242

Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 21, 2024

For and on behnlf of Board of Dlrecturs of

Puneet A ‘~ - ek
Director : :‘JQRA:T‘NLDH“L )v{ Tf
DIN: 0692199 2, DI m /a3 oy
1~
P *

f"\‘-‘\
Ankit Kumar Jan
Company Secretary

Place: Bengaluru
Datc: May 21, 2024



Whizdm Finance Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except share data and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

2.

2.1

(a)

(b)

Corporate information

Whizdm Finance Private Limited (“the Company™) incorporated in India on March 29, 2017 under the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act™). The Company is engaged in lending activities. The Company has obtained its license from
Reserve Bank of [ndia ("RBI™) to operate as a Non deposit accepting Non — Banking Financial Company ("NBFC -
ND™) on June 28. 2019 vide registration No. RBI N-02-00317.

Basis of preparation of financial statements

I'he financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles in India (*Indian GAAP™). The Company has prepared these financial statements to comply in all material
respects with the Accounting Standards notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (*the Act’) read with
rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, Companies (Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016 and
the provisions ol the RBI as applicable to Middle Layer Non-Banking Finance Company (‘"NBFC-ML") according o
Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company —Scale Based Regulation) Directions,
2023, as amended from time (o time. The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention
and on an accrual basis.

All assets and liabilitics have been classified as current and non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle
and other criteria set out in Schedule 111 to the Act. The Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for
the above purpose.

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of standalone financial statements are consistent with those of
previous year.

Summary of significant accounting policies
Use of estimates

The preparation of standalone (inancial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires the management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities on the date of the standalone financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses for
the period. Although these estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge of the current events and actions,
uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in [uture periods,

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
il'any. The cost comprises of purchase price. borrowing costs if capitalization criteria are met. directly attributable cost
of bringing the asset Lo its working condition for the intended use and initial estimate of decommissioning, restoring
and similar liabilities. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving al the purchase price. Such cost includes
the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment.

When signilicant parts of plant and equipment are required o be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them
separately based on their specific uselul lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed. its cost is recognised
in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement il the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other
repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

ltems of stores and spares that meet the definition of property, plant and equipment are capitalized at cost and
depreciated over their useful life.




Whizdm Finance Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(c)

(d)

Gains or losses arising from de recognition of property, plant and equipment are measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss
when the asset is derecognized.

The company identifies and determines cost of each component/ part of the asset separately, if the component/ part has
a cost which is signilicant to the total cost of the asset and has useful life that is materially ditferent from that of the
remaining asset.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment

Depreciation is calculated on Written Down Value Method (-WDV”) basis using the rates arrived at based on the useful
lives as specilied in Schedule I1 to the Act.

The Company has used the (ollowing useful life and rates to provide depreciation on its property. plant and equipment:

Assel calegory Useful life (In years)
Computer equipment 3

The residual values. useful lives and methods of depreciation of property. plant and equipment are reviewed at each
financial year end and adjusted prospectively, i appropriate,

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Company assesses at cach reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists. or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) net
selling price and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset. unless the asset does
not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying
amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down Lo its
recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. In determining net selling price. recent market transactions are taken into account. if available. [{ no such
transactions can be ideéntified. an appropriate valuation model is used.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the
revenue can be reliably measured.

i) Income [rom financing activities:
a) Interest Income

Interest Income on standard loans is recognized on a time proportion accrual basis taking into account the amount
outstanding and interest rate implicitin the underlying agreements. Income or any other charges on non-performing
assets are recognized only when realized. Any income recognized and remaining unrealised before the assel
became non-performing is reversed,

b) Loan origination income i.¢ processing fee and other charges collected/charged upfront are recognised at the
inception of loan.
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Whizdm Finance Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(n

(g)

(h)

¢) All other charges such as cheque return charges, legal charges, collection charges. penal charges ete are recognized
on realization basis. These charges are treated Lo accrue on realization. due to uncertainty of their realization,

i) Interest Income on deposits

Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the
applicable interest rate. Interest income is included under the head ~Other income™ in the statement of profit and
loss.

iii) Profit/Loss on sale of investments

Profi/loss on sale of investments is recognised on trade date basis. On disposal of an investment, the difference
between its carrying amount and net disposal proceeds is charged or credited to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

iv) Income from Securitisation/ Assignment

Securitized/Assigned assets are derecognised when all the rights, title, future receivables and interest thereot along
with all the risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the purchasers ol loans. The company has accounted
for Securitisation and Direct Assignment in accordance with “Master Direction-RBI (Securitisation of Standard
Assets) Directions, 2021 and ~“Master Direction-RBI (Transfer of Loan Exposures) Directions, 2021.

a) Income on retained interest in securitised/assigned loans and income from excess interest spread in
securitised/assigned loans is recognised in the statement of profit and loss account at the time of actual receipt.

b) Servicing fee received is accounted for based on the underlying deal structure of the transaction as per the
agreement,

Investments

Investments, which are readily realizable and intended to be held for not more than one year from the date on which
such investments are made. are classified as current investments. All other investments are classified as long-term
investments. On initial recognition, all investments are measured at cost. The cost comprises purchase price and
directly attributable acquisition charges such as brokerage. fees and duties. Current investments are carried in the
standalone financial statements at lower of cost and fair value determined on an individual investment basis. Long-
lerm investments are carried at cost. However, provision for diminution in value is made to recognize a decline other
than temporary in the value of the investments. On disposal of investment. the difference between its carrying amount
and net disposal proceeds is charged or credited to the statement of profit and loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing cost directly attributable to the acquisition. construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready [or its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur, Borrowing costs consist of interest cost that an
entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds and also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded
as an adjustment to the borrowing costs. Costs incurred for origination of borrowings are amortized over the tenor of
the agreement.

Employee benefits

Defined Contribution Plan




Whizdm Finance Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(i)

()

(k)

Contribution towards provident fund for all employees is made to the regulatory authorities, where the Company has
no further obligations. Such benefits are classified as Defined Contribution Schemes as the Company does not carry
any further obligations. apart from the contributions made on a monthly basis.

Defined Benefit Plan

Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation and is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation on projected
unit credit method. made at the end of each financial year. Actuarial gains and losses are recognized in full in the year
in which they occur in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Accumulated compensated absences. which are expected to be availed or encashed within 12 months from the end of
the year end are treated as short term employee benefits. The obligation towards the same is measured at the expected
cost of accumulating compensated absences as the additional amount expected o be paid as a result of the unused
cntitlement as at the year end. The Company's liability is actuarially determined (using the projected unit credit method)
al the end of each year. Actuarial losses/gains are recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the year in which
they arise.

Income taxes

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current income-tax is measured at the amount expected Lo be paid to
the tax authorities in accordance with the Income-tax Act. 1961 enacted in India. The tax rates and tax laws used to
compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of timing ditferences between taxable income and accounting income
originating during the current year and reversal of timing differences for the earlier periods. Deferred tax is measured
using the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable timing differences. Deferred lax assels are recognized for
deductible timing differences only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient [uture taxable income
will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized. In situations where the Company has
unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward tax losses. all deferred tax assets are recognized only if there is virtual
certainty supported by convincing evidence that they can be realized against future taxable profits.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date. The Company writes-down the carrving
amount of deferred tax asset to the extent that it is no longer reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be,
that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which deferred tax asset can be realized. Any such write-
down is reversed Lo the extent that it becomes reasonably certain or virtually certain. as the case may be. that sufficient
future taxable income will be available,

PProvisions

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event. it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required 1o settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are not discounted to their present value and are determined based
on the best estimate required to settle the obligation at the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each reporting
date and adjusted 1o reflect the current best estimates.

Larnings per share
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity sharcholders

by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue,
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Whizdm Finance Private Limited
Nates to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(1)

(m)

(n)

(0)

(p)

share split. and reverse share split (consolidation of shares) that have changed the number ol equity shares outstanding,
without a corresponding change in resources.

Provision on loans and advances:

(i) Loans are classified and provided for/ written ofT as per Company s policy given in below paragraphs, subject to
the minimum provision required as per the Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial
Company —Scale Based Regulation) Directions. 2023 applicable to a middle layer Non Banking Financial
Company (NBFC-ML).

(il) The Company identifies Non-Performing Assets in accordance with Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India
(Non-Banking Financial Company —Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 applicable to a middle layer Non
Banking Financial Company (NBIFC-ML).

(iii) The Company provides 100% provision towards Non Performing assets and has a policy ol writing olT NPA
loans greater than 180 DPD.

(iv) The Company provides 0.40% provision towards Standard assets.

Share based payments

I'he Holding Company has formulated an Employees Stock Option Plan 2015 (Revised). basis which stock options
have been granted to the employees of the Company. In accordance with the Guidance Note on Accounting for
Employee Share-based Payments, the cost ol equity-settled transactions is measured using the intrinsic value method
and the same is recognized to the extent of the vesting period that has expired as an employee benelfits expense with
a corresponding increase in liability towards the Holding Company in the books of the Company. The cumulative
expense recognized for equity-settled transactions at cach reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent o
which the vesting period has expired and the Company s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. The expense or credit recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss for a period represents the
movement in cumulative expense recognized as at the beginning and end of that period and is recognized in employee
benefits expense.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the
oceurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present
obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannol be recognized
because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its
existence in the financial statements.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of cash flow statement comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term
investments with an original maturity of three months or less.

Special Reserve

The company transiers 20% of Net profit after Tax to Statutory Reserve Fund in accordance with the provisions of Sec
45-1C of Reserve Bank ol India Act.1934.




Whizdm Finance Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(q) Segment Reporting

I'he Company operates in a single business segment i.e. lending to borrowers . which have similar risks and returns for
the purpose o' AS 17 on - Segment reporting™ specified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with rule
7 of the companies (Accounting standards) amendment Rules, 2016. All other activities of the company revolve around
these activities, The company operate in a single geographical segment i.e. domestic.




Whizdm Finunce Private Limited

Naotes (o the financial stutements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(All amounts are in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except share data and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

3. Share capital

Authorized shares
Equity shares of Rs 10 each

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
Equity shares of Rs. 10 eich
Total

{a) Reconciliation of share capital
At the beginning of the year

lssied during the yem
Ouistanding at the end of the year

(b} Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

No. of shares Rs. No. of shares Rs.
13000000 1500 (0 10000, 00 1006000
1,50,00,000 1.500.00 100, 00,1000 1, 0HLOD
1.04.39.540 1,045 96 61.87.694 01877
1,04,39,546 1,043.96 61,87,694 0618.77

Equity Equiry

No. of shares Rs, No. of shares Rs.
61.87.694 GI8 77 41,70,000 417.00
12.51.852 425 19 20,17 6% 200177
1.04,39,546 1.043.96 61,87,094 618.77

The Company has only one class of equity shares aving a par value of Rs 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. All equnty shares rank
equally with regard to dividends and share in the Company's residual assets. The equity shares are enfitled 1o receve dividend as declared, On winding, up of the Company, the
holders of cquity shares will be entitled 10 receive the residual assets of the Company in propartion to the number of equity shares held.

1 £nll

(¢) Shareholding of pr are as

No. of shares Y holding No. of shares o holding
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each
Whizdm Innovations Private Limited 1,04,39,545 100, 00%, 61,87,083 1O0.00%,
Change in Y change Change in % change
number of shares during the year number of shares during the year
42.51,852 .00 20,17 694 0,00
(el ) Shares held by holding company
No. of shares Rs. No. of shares Rs.
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each
Wheedim Innovations Private Linited 104,539,545 1.043.95 61.87,093 01877
1,04,39,545 I'I_}-B.SIE 61,87,693 618.77
{#) Sharcholders holding more than 5% of the shares
No. of shares Va Mo, of shares o
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each
Whizdm [nnovations Private Limited 1.04.39,545 100% 61.87.693 1004
I!ﬂgﬂg‘lﬂ 100 %, 6I.8?& 100"

4. Reserves and surplus

A. Securities premium

Balance as per the last Anancial statements

Add: Premium received on 1ssue of shares durig the year
Closing balance

B. Statutory Reserve Fund under section 45-1C of RBI Act, 1934"

Balance as per the last financial statements
Add: Transfer from Surplus in Profit and loss account
Closing balance

L Bepresents transter of 20% of Net peofit affer Taxo i accordimee with the provisions of Section 45-10 of Reserve Bank of India Act. 1934

C. Surplus in Profit and loss account
Balance as per the last Anancial statements
Add: Profit for the year

Less: Transfer to Statuony Reseive Fund under secnon 45-1C of RB1 Act, 1954

Closing balance

Total reserves and surplus (A+B+C+D)

I spaace 1s ntenliomealiv fefi Blank)

15,099 69 5400 44
44,574 80 10,598.25
00,574,49 15,999,69
37,53 043
77647 3710
814,00 37.53
10981 {38.57)
388236 185,48
(776.47) (37 1)
3.215.70 109.81
04.604.19 16,147.03




Whizdm Finance Privare Limited
Notes to the linancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Al nmounts are in lndian Rupees Lakhs, except share data and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

March 31,2024 March 31, 2023

5, Long-term borrowings

Secured

Non Comvertible debentures od 436 10 265000
Ferm loan from Banks 17,365 40 3000 00
Term loan from finaneial instituiions 52059 38 2301124
Less: Current maturities of long-term bivriwings (92 568 86) (20,076.20)

41,492.02 5,985.04

| The Company has rased borrowwmgs for general corporate purposes of (o orginate portfolio. The loans are secured by way of hypothecation over portfaho loans
ey carry wilerest o the range of 8 4%0-15%

6. Long-term provisions
Provision for emplovee benelils

Compensated ahsences 5723 1310
Giratuity {refer Note 25) G640 5

Other provisions
Provision Tor sub-standard asgets 1.908 70 1, 250000
206233 1,302.04

7. Short-term barrowings
Unsecured

Commercial Papers 2.500.00 =
Secured
Term loan from Banks 1491293 -
Term loan from financial msiutons 17,873.08 =
Current maturities of long-term borrowings 93 568 806 2007620
1,27.854.87 20,076.200
8. Trade puyahles
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises-and somall enterprises 4383 -
Total outstanding dues of ereditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 3,79 36 431 47
384019 431.47
{a) Trade pavable ageing schedul
Particnlars Outstanding for Following periods from due date of payment
Unbilled Not due Less than 1 More than 1 year Total
year
Total outstanding dues of MSME = 1395 28 46 - 43 8%
Total purstanding dues of credioes other than MSME B B 356 97 205 82 - 3,796 36
As ot March 31,2024 3,234,99 370.92 213428 - 3440009
Total putstanding dues of MSME - - - - -
Total outstanding dues of ereditors ather than MSME 31 37 39518 492 - 43147
As at March 31, 2023 31.37 395,18 4.92 - 431.47
(b Diselosure required under Clause 22 of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Develop (MSMEDR') Aet, 2006

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

(1) Dues remamng unpaid to anv supplier

Principal 1383 -
Interest - -
[it) The amount of interest pad by (he buyer m terms of section [6 of the MSAMED Act, 2006 along with the nmounts of the - -
paviment made to the supplier hevond the appomied day dunng euch dccounting vear
(i) The amount of interest due and pavable for the peniod of delay in making payment {which has been paid but bevond - -
appointed dav durimi the vear) but without adding the interest speeified under the MSMED Act, 2006
(iv) The amount of mterest acerued and remaining un-pad at the end of each accounting year - -
1) The amount of further interest cemaming due and payable even in the sueceeding years, untl such date when the interest - -

dues as above are actually pad 1o the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as.a deductible expenditure under section
23 of the MSMED Act, 2006
The above diselosures are provided by the Company based on the mformanon avinlable with the Company m respeet of the regrstraion status of ts vendors.

9, Other curcent linbilities

Sratutory labilines 439 53 2351 43
Salanes and bonus pavable 4541 1542
Interest aecrued but not due on borrowinis n22l6 08 50
Payable towards secur g 1 2055353 -
3,162.03 36735

10, Short-term provisions
Provision for enplovee benelits

Compensated absences 485 114
Gratutty (refer Note 25) 388 127

Other provisions
Provision for stundard assels 78441 80 I8
793.17 91.59
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Whizdm Finunee Private Limited
Notes (o the financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2024
(Al amounts are in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except share data and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

11, Property, plant and equipment

Computer equipment Total
Gross carrying value
As at April (1, 2022 8.15 B.25
Additions - -
[Msposals - -
As at March 31, 2023 8.25 8.25
Addinons 7.86 7.86
[isposals - -
As at March 31, 2024 I6.11 16.11
Accumulated Depreciation
As at April 01, 2022 0.05 0.05
Charge for the yvear 518 518
Disposals - -
As at March 31, 2023 5.13 523
Charge for the year 235 235
Disposals - -
As at March 31, 2024 7.58 7.58
MNet block
As at March 31, 2023 3.02 3.02
As at March 31, 2024 B.53 8.53
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Whizdm Finance Private Limited

Naotes to the financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2024

(Al amounts are in lndian Rupees Lakhs, except sharve data and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

12. Deferred Tax Asset (net)

Deferved tax assets

Impact o expenditure charged to the statement of profit and loss but allowable for tax purposes n subsequent

13, Loans and advances

Portfolio Loans
Unseeured, considered standard
Unsecured. considered sub-standard

Other loans and advances

(unsecured. considered good unless otherwise stated)
Recoverable from related parties (refer Note 24)
Balances with statutory/government authonties
Advance tax (net of provision for tax)
Prepaid expenses

14, Other Assets

Interest acerued but not due on bank deposits
Interest acerued but not due on pontfolio loans
Imterest accrued and due on portfolio loans
Payment gateway receivable

Cash margm for Mon Conventible Debentures

15, Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents

Deposits with orgmal maturity of' less than three months

Balances with banks in current accounts

Other bank balances

Deposit with remaining maturity of more than twelve months'

I Term deposit with bank amounting to Rs 146,20 15 lien marked

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

211.86 291,32
211.860 291.32
Long-Term Short-Term

March 31,2024  March 31, 2023

Muarch 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

7324810 3,683 93 121,990 46 3LATT01
1 908 70 1,250 00 e 5
- - - 34774
- - 47992 .
605 SR - =
392.07 3527 1.504.75 187.50
75,855.08 5,032.11 1,23,925.13 32,112.25
Non-current Current
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31,2024 Muarch 31, 2023
- - 057 -
- - 392352 524.53
- - 35091 48.60
- - 928.37 153,93
- 175.00 100 00 -
- 17500 5,343.37 727.06
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
1.600,00 -
3761399 6,679.33
295 40 -
39,509.39 6,679.33

[ s sparee Tas been imentronally teft blank |




Whizdm Finance Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2024

(Allamounts are in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except share data and per sharve data, unless otherwise stated)

16. Revenue from operations

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Year ended
March 31, 2023

Interest income 30,361 87 4.527 53
Processing fees and other charges 16,762.03 243907
47,123.90 6,986,60
17. Other income
Interest income from investment in fixed deposits h393 1 26
Met gain on sale of mutual funds a71.16 12544
Other non operating income 12 68 b
1,047.77 126,70
18. Employee beoefit expenses
Salaries. wages and bonus H82 27 19903
Employer's coniribution to Provident fund und other employee benefit funds 7. 4 66
Employee stock option costs 25996 20545
Giratuity expense 3047 444
1,309.41 743.58
19, Finance costs
Interest on borrowings 11088 02 2.065 33
Processing charges on borrowings 105111 14675
Guaranee [ees 1.280.66 -
Bank charges 24161 52.86
13,661.40 2,264.94
20, Provision on Loans and Advances
Provision for standard assets (95.23 6983
Provision for sub-standard assets and write offs 8,100 37 1.639.07
8,795.60 1,708.90
21. Depreciation
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 235 518
35 5.18
21, (hher expenses
Professional charues' 16,135.31 1.905.07
Transaction processing charges 240517 122.62
I'T maintenance charges S08.71 102,12
Rates and taxes 12622 418
Miscellaneous expenses 2353 623
19,198.94 2,140.22
I Pavment to auditors (excluding taxes)
() Audit fees 9.00 4.50
ih) Reimbursement of expenses 027 -
9.27 4.50

Corporate social responsibility expense

As per section 135 of the Act, a company, having net worth of rupees five hundred erore or more, or wrnover of rupees one thousand crore or mare
or a net profit of rupees hve crore or more durmg the immediately preceding financial year ("applicable threshold" 1 needs to spend atleast 2% of its
average net profit tor the immediately preceding three financial yvears on corpurate social responsibality (CSR) activities. The Company has not met
the applicable threshold and hence the requirement to comply with the said seetion 15 not applicable to the Company
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Whizdm Finance Private Limitd
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Allamounts are in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except share data and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

23, Earnings per share Year ended Year ended
Murch 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Nomimal value of equity shares (Rs) 10.00 10.00
(i) Net Profn for the vear 388236 185 48
(b} Basic'diluted number of Equity shares of Rs 10 each omstanding durng the year 1,04, 39,546 6l 87,694
{e) Wewghted average number of Eguity shares of Rs 10 each outstanding durmy the year 89,319,603 47.25.653
(d) Basic/diluted Earmings per share ( Rs) 4343 393

24, Related party disclosures

() Parties where control exists includes:

vame ol party Nature of relationship
Samgay Aggarwal Director
Puneet Agarvwal Director
Nagaraj Subramanya Director
Whizdm lnnovations Provare Limited Holding company
Whizdm Fintech Povate Limied Feellow subsichian
Ankit Kurmar Jam Company Secretary (w.e I March 31, 2024)

ib} The following table is the summary of transactions with related parties by the Company: -

Year ended Yeur ended

March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Whizdm Innovations Private Limited

Loans avinled during the year 280000 410000
Loans repaid duning the vear 2.800.00 3 0000 (0
Professional charges 14,925 22 1B 40
Guarantee fees 116048 -

Reimbursement of expense - 1,339 80
Reimbursement of share bused payments to emplovees 25096 20545
Interest expense 44 02 170 69
Business support service 12.00 600

Ankit Kumar Jain

Remuneration’ (134 *
Notes

| The gratwity and compensated absence expenses are determmed for all the emplovees as a whole and not identitiable separately for key management personnel. Hence, the
remuneration diselosed above does mot inelude the same

2 The Company has recovered Nil (March 2023 Rs 1.235.02) towards service deficiency charges in cantractual repiyinent and collection related services provided by its Halding
Clompany

¢) The halances receivable from and payable to related parties as at vear end are as follows

Mareh 31,2024 March 31,2023

Whizdm Innovations Private Limited
Other (Pavable) Recevable {3,208 62) 347 74
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Whizdm Finance Private Limited
Notes to the financial stntements for the vear ended March 31, 2024
(Al amounts are in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except share data and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

25, Gratuity

Bretmed benefit plans

The Company operates grannty benelit plan, for s emplovees Under the grmomy plan. every emplover who has completed m least five vears of service gets a gratuity on
retirement ternunation at 13 davs of last drawn satary For each completed year of service The plan s not funded by the Company The Company has adopted Accounting Standard
15 wssued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and habulity has been compuned as per Projected Unit eredit method basis aetuarial valustion

The Following table summarises the components of net benefit expense recogmised m the statement of profit and loss and the unfunded siatus and amounts recownmsed n the
balance sheet for the respective plans

Statement of profit and loss Year ended Year ended
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Net emploves benefit expense recoumized m the employee cost
Current servie cost 2533 941
Interest cost on benetit obhgaton 106 046
Actuanal Toss recogmazed durmg the year 31.08 24.57
Net benefit expense 5047 34.44
Balance sheet
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Present value of defmed benefit obligarion 100.28 40.81
Plan liability 100,28 40.81
ses i (] Se0L v : fined benefit obliganon
Opening defined benefit obligation 4081 637
Current service cost 25:33 a4
Interest cost 306 0 da
Actuaral loss on oblization iLos 24 57
Benefits paid = -
Closing defined benefit abligation 100.28 40.81

The principal assumptions used in determumng gratuty obligations for the Company s plans are shown below

March 31,2024 March 31, 2023

Diseount rote T25% T3P
Altrtion tate 10 06, 1000
Salary mcrease 10.00% 100
Retirement age 60 years ol) vears

e discount rate 15 based on the prevarluyg market yields of Government ol lndia securities as at the Balonee Sheet date v the estimated term of the abligations
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W hizdm Finance Private Limited
Notes to the linancial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2024
(Al amounts are in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except share data and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

20, Financial Ratios

(i) Curreat ratio = Current assets divided by current liabilities

Murch 31,2024 Murch 31, 2023

Current assets 168,777 89 39,518 64
Current habilives 133,630 86 20,966 61
Ratio 124 | 88
% Change from previeus period -3d%

Comment: Decrease m Current Rano 15 on aceount of inerease in short term borrowings and current matunties of long tevm borrowings thereby mereasmy the current labilines
balance as a1 year end

(i) Debr Equity ratio = Total debt divided by total equity where total debt refers to sum of current and non current borrowings

March 31,2024 March 31, 2023

Total debt 1,68 346 89 26061 24
Total cquity (5,648 15 10, 765.80
Ratio 2358 1 55
% Change from previous period bt

Comment: Increase m Debt Equiy Ratio s on aceount of the Faet thar significant delit was rassed near the end of the yvear, thereby, incrensing the debt balance sienificantly as at
vear end. The Company 15 optimusing its leverage ratio in view of adequate capital support by the Holdmg company

{iii) Debt Serviee Coverage Ratio = Earnings available for debt services divided by Total interest and principal repayments

Year ended Year ended
_March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Profit before tas 5.203.97 250 4%
Add Non cash operating expenses amd finance cost

= Interest on borrowings I1.088.02 206533
- Deprecianon 235 518
- Provision on loans and advances 8.795.60 1,708 90
Earnings available for debt services (A) 25,089 94 1,029 89
Short-term borraowings 127,854 87 20,076 20
Add - Current interest payments 1233094 214701
Total Debt {B) 140,385 81 2222321
Ratin 018 (AL
% Change from previous period 1%
(iv) Return on Equity Ratio / Return on Investment Ratio = Net profit after tax divided by Average Equity

Net Profit after tax 3H82 36 185 48
Average equity 4120698 11.273.05
Ratio v 002
% Change from previous period 473%

Comment: Increase in Return on Equity Ratio 15 on account of sigmificanty ligher average portfolio outstandimg durmg the curtent vear as compared to previons vear which has
led to better earnngs n the curren vear Fuether the Company had a low leverage rano throughout the vear which has helped boost tts profitabiline

(v) Net capital Turnover Ratio = Revenue from operations divided by Average Net Working capital

Revenue from operations 47,123 90 6,986 60
Net working camtal 2583053 1267343
Ratio 182 035
% Change from previous period 231%

Comment: Increase n Net Capial Tunener Rato s on account of siemificanty higher avernue portfolio outstanding during the current vear s compared to previous vear which
has led to better camings m the current vear

(vi) Net profit ratio = Net profit after tax divided by Revenue from operations

MNet Profi atter tax 3882 30 185 48
Revenue from operations 4712390 0,986 60
Ratin 008 003
%o Change from previous period 210%

Comment: Increase in Net Profit Ratio is on account of low leserage ratio throughout the vear which has helped boost the profitability ol the Company
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Whizdm Finance Private Limited
Notes to the financinl statements for the vear ended March 31, 2024
(Al ampunts are in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except share data and per sharve data, unless otherwise stated)

20, Financial Ratios (contd.)
ivii) Return on Capital employed (pre cosh)=Earnings before interest and taxes (EBIT) divided by Average Capital Employed

Year ended Year ended
March 31,2024 ¥ 3

Net Profit before tax 520397 25048
Add Interest on borrowmngs 11,Us8 02 206533
EBIT 16,291 99 23158
Avernge capatal emploved 138911 04 27,854 43
Ratio niz 008
% Change from previous period 41%

Comment: Invrease m Return on Capital emploved 15 on account of significantly higher average portfolio owtstanding dunng the current vear as compared to previous vear which
has led to better eamings m the corrent year Further the Company had o low leverage rano throughout the vear which has helped boost ws profirability

27, Segment Information
The Company operites n a sugle reponable sepment e fnoncing and all ts operations are in Indin only. Accordingly, there are no separate reportable segments for the purpse
of AS-17 on ‘Seyment Reporting’ spectfied under section 133 of the Act read with Rule 7 of Compames | Aceounts) Rules, 2014

28, Contingent liability and commitments

(i) There are no contingent habilities as at March 31, 2024 (March 31, 2023 Nily

(b) There 15 no pending htigation on the Company as at March 31, 20249 (March 31, 2023 Niby

() The Company has no long term contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses as on March 31, 2024 (March 31, 2023 M)

29, The Company has no foreign currency exposure for the vear ended March 31, 2024 (March 31, 2023 Nily

Disclosures purswant to Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company —Seale Based Regulation) Directi 2023 (ns led from time
o time)

30, Information in respect of Restructured assets

Standard Sub Standard
Restructured decounts as on April 01, 2023

No ol Accounts = |
Amount Outstanding % 014
Provision thereon = 014
Restructuring during the year

Novof Accounts x ~
Amount Restructured - -
Restruciur ceounts o5 on March 31, 2024

Noaf Aecounts - |
Amornt Outstanding - no3
Provision thereon - o3

Standard Sub Standard
Restructured accounts s on April (11, 2022

N of Accounts 12 5
Amour Ostanding 1 5% =
Provision thereon o -
Re: ing during the year

Noof Accounts - &
Amount Restructured = -
Reswructured aecounts as an Maech 31, 2023

Noof Avcounts = [
Amount Outstanding = 014
Provision thereon 5 (014
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Whizdm Finance Private Limited
Notes 1o the financial statem ents for the vear ended March 31, 2024
(Al amounts are in lodian Rupees Luakhs, except share data and per share data, uoless otherwise stated)

3t

Sehedule to the Balance Sheet of an NBFC

Assets side

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
0 ling Overdue (8] fing Overdue
Liahilities side
Loans and advances availed by the non-banking financial
company inclusive of interest acerued thereon but not paid:
A Debentures
Secured 6,694 56 - 2,650 00 -
Uinsecured - - - -
{other than falling wathn the meanng of public deposits)
by Deferred credits - - - -
¢} Term loans 1.02.774 49 - 23,509 74 -
di Intercorporate loans and borrowanus - - - -
e)  Commercial paper 250000 = = =
1 Public deposis - 5 -
) (hher loans - - - -
As at March 31,2024 As at March 31, 2023

Amount Outstanding

Breakup of loans and advances including bills receivables

{including interesi acerued)

a)  Seeured

by Unsecured

Breakup of leased assets and stock on hire and other assets

1 Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors
#)  Finineial lease
by Operanng lease

o Stock on hire mncluding hire charges under sundry debtors

a)  Assetson hure
b} Repossessed assets
i Other loans countimg towards asset lnancing achivities
1) Loanswhere assets have been repossessed
I Loans other than ta) above

Breakup of investments
Current investments
I OQuoted
i Shares
Ay Equity
hy  Preference
1 Debentures and bonds

e Lot of mutual funds
o Government securities
v Others
11 Unguoted
1 Shares

a)  Equity

b}  Preference
1 Debentures and bonds
wi Units of munial funds
e Government sesuriiies
v Others

Long term imyestments

1 Quoted
i Shares

a)  Egquity

by Preference
n o Debenwres and bonds
e Umits ol muteal funds
o Government securines
v Others
I Unguoted
+ Shares

a)  Equiny

b)  Preference

1 Debentores and bonds
i Units of mutual funds
v Ciovermment secunies

v Dthers

20141188

Amount Overdue

Amount Outstanding

37086407

Amount Overdue
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Whiedm Finance Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the yenr ended Mareh 31, 2024
(Al amounts are in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except share data and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

31 Schedule to the Balance Sheet of an NBFC (cont'd):

i) Borrower group - wise classification of assets financed

As at March 31, 2024

Net of provisions
Category
Secured Unsecured Provisinns Total
I Related parties
a)  Subsidiaries - - - -
by Companies in the same group - - - =
¢} Other related parties - - = s
2 Other than related parties - 2,01 41185 269311 198,718 19
Total - 20141185 2,693.11 1,98,718.74
As at March 31, 2023
; Net of provisions
Category - — -
Secured Linsecured Provisions Total
I Related parties
) Subsidiores - - - -
by Companies in the same group - - = -
€ Other related purnes - - - =
2 Other than related parties - 3708607 1,339 18 35,740 89
Total - 37,086.07 1,339.18 35,746.89
(i) Investor group - wise classification of all investments (current and long term ) in shares and securities (both quoted and ung 1) &
As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Market value / break Book value Market value / break Book value
Category up or fuir value ar (Net of up or fir value or (Net of
NAV(Y) provision) NAV() provision)
I Related parties
a)  Subsidharies - N 5
by Companies in the same group - - - -
) Other reloted parties - - - -
2 Other than related parties - - - -
Taotal - - - -
(iii) Other information
Particnlurs 8 S
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
i Gross non-performing assets
a)y  Related parties - -
by Other than related parties 1.908 70 1.250.00
i Net non-performing assels
a)  Related parties - -
by Other than related parties - -
il Assets acguired in satisfiction of debi = =
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Whizdm Finance Private Limited
Noutes to the financinl statements for the vear ended Mareh 31, 2024
{All amounts are in lodian Rupees Lakhs, except share data and per shave data, unless otherwise stated)

32 Asset Ligbility Managemnent Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities:-

As at Murch 31, 2024

Particulars Upte 7 days Over U8 days| Over 15 days | Over | month upte|  Over 2 months Over 3 months & | Over 6 months & | Over I year & upto| Over 3 years &| Over 3 years Tutal
upto 14 days | upty | menths 2 months upto 3 months upto 6 months upto | year 3 years upto 5 years
Borrowings 75301 589 81 7.257.63 20298 22 14.933 27 3275919 50.203.74 4149202 - - 1,64.346.89
Apsels
Loans 1374226 - t4.962.24 13.710.37 34.051.59 45171 67 66501 73 8957 56 - 1.97.007.42
As al March 31, 2023
[Particutars Upte 7 duys Over U8 days| Over 1S days | Over | month upte |  Over 2 months Over Imoaths & | Over 6 months & | Over | year & upto| Over 3 years &| Over 5 years Tetal
upto 15 days | upte | months 2 months upto 3 months upte & menths upto | year 3 years apto 5 yeurs
Linbilities
Borrowings 71.89 22500 981,85 1.73596 2.186.77 5.408.52 946622 5.985 03 - - 26.061.24
Assets
Loans 4,646 20 - 140011 4,6013.80 419475 8.735.67 9.246.48 361179 1,322 14 - 36,512.94

Note: The Company does not have depusits, investments, Tureign currency assets and Liabilities as a1 March 31. 2024 und March 31, 2023
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Whiedm Finance Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements Tor the yenr ended March 31, 2024
(Al amounnts wre in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except share data and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

33 Public disclosure on liguidity risk
(i} Funding concenteation based on signilicant connterparty (horrowings)

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Number of Significant Counterparties 23 2
Ammount 10363040 13.138.62
% of Total deposits Nl Nil
% of Total hubuliies 5783% 46.50%

Nuote
I A “Signifieant counterparty ™ is defined as a single counterparty or wroup of connected or alfilisted counterparties accountimg m aggresate for more than 1% of the NBFC-
NDSIs, NBFC-Ds total labiities and 107 for other non-deposi taking NBFUs

2 Total liabilities has been computed s (ofal assets less equity share capital less reserse & surplis and computed basis extant resulatory ALM guidelines
(i) Top 20 targe deposits- Nl (March 2023 Nl

{iii) Top 10 outstanding burrowings
Amannt
% of Total borrowings 34,329 60 22130 56
3208% 84920
Note:
L. Acerued interest on borrowangs not considered
2 Total horrowing has been computed as wross total debt basis extant regulatory ALM wwdelines

(i) Funding Concentration based on significant instrument/product

As at March 31, 2024
Number of the instrument/product Amonnt i off Total linbilities
Non convertible debentures 04,430 10 15.96%
Term Loan from Banks 32,478 33 18.12%
Term Loan from Fls 09,932 40 39.02%
Commereial Papers 2,50000 1 40%
Total 1.69,346,89 94.50%
As at March 31, 2023
Nunmber of the instrument/product vt %o of Total liabilities
Non eonvertible debentores 2,630 00 9.38%
Term Loan from Banks 400, () 1.42%
Term Loan from Fls 23.011.24 21 49%
Total 26,061.24 92.24%

Mote
A "significant instrument/product” 1s defined as a single mstrument’product of group of simlar nstruoments/products which n aggregate amount to mare than 1% of the NBFC-
NDSI's, NBFC-Ds total liabalities and 10% For other non-deposu taking NBFCs

Tutal liahilities has been computed as Total assets less equity share capital less reserve & surplus and computed hasis extant regulatory ALM guidelines

(v} Stock Ratios:

a) Commereial papers.as a % of total public funds, total liabilines and total assets—- March 31, 2024 Muarch 31, 2023
Tatal Public funds 1.48% Nil
Total Liabalities I Aty Nil
Total Assets 1.02% il

by Nom-eonvertible debentures toriginal maturity of less than one yeard as 8 %o of total public funds, total Labilities and 1otal assets - Nil (March 2023 5l

) Oher short-term linbilities, iFany as a%e of total public funds, rotal liabilities and 101al assets

Total Public funds 80107 &0 450,
Tatal Liahilites 73.70% 74 21%
Fotal Assels 35400 46, 57%

(i) Institutionnd set-up for liguidity risk management

Board of Directors:
The Board has the overall responsibility for

with the liguidity risk wlerance himits decided by 1t

of lguidity risk The Board shall deeide the steatewy, policies and procedures to manage hguidity sk i accordance
Risk Management Committee:
The Risk Management Commttes 15 responsible for evaluating the overall nsks faced by the NBFC including hguschiy risk

Asset-Linbility Management Commitiee (ALCO):
The ALCO ensures adherence o the nisk tolerance/linnes set by the Board us well as implements the hgmdny nsk monagement saréey of the NBFC

34 Mo penalties were imposed by RBLand other regulitors durmg the year ended March 31, 2024 and Mareh 31, 2023
35 The Company has not withdrawn any amount from any reserves durnmg the vear ended March 31. 2024 and March 31, 2023
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Whizdm Finance Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2024
(Allamounts are in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except share data and per share data, unless otherwise stated}

36
al

Exposure
Exposure to real estate seetor Nil (M ach 31, 2023 Nily

by Expostiee to capital market. Nil (Mareh 31,2023 Nily
¢} Sectoral exposure:
Sectors Current Year Previous Year
Total Exposure |  Gross | Percentage of | Tofal Exposure | Gross NPAs| Percentage of
(includes on NPAs | Gross NPAs o (includes on Gross NPAs
balance sheet total exposure | balance sheet and to total
and off-balance in that sector | off-balance sheet exposure in
sheet exposure) exposure) that sector
1. Agriculiure and Allied Activities - - - - - -
2 Ind ¥ = = - - = -
1 MSME- Micro 113151 - - - -
3. Services - - - - - -
i Other services 414197 - - - - -
4. Personal Loans
i Other Personal louns 16082197 1,908 70 1 19% 36,512 94 1,250 (¢ 342%
Total of Personal Loans
5. Others - - - - -
d) Intra-group exposures: Nil (March 31, 2023: Nily
¢} Unhedged foreign currency exposure; Nil {March 31, 2023 Nil)
37 Related party disclosures:
P, Related Party Parent Key Management Per I Relatives of Key Total
T Management Personne!
Items T Current year Previons | Current year Previons vear Current | Previous vear| Current Previous
vear year year veur
Borrowines availed during the vear 280000 | 4.100.00 - - - 2,800 00 410000
Bomowingzs repaid during the vear 230000 | 500000 2.800.00 5000 00
Other receivable/ {payable) (3,208 62) 347 74 - - - - (3.208 62 34774
[nierest paid 4402 17069 - = - - 44.02 170).69
Professional charges 13492522 1.841 49 - - 1492522 1.841.49
Quarantee fees 1.169.48 = - = - 1.169.48 -
Reimbursement of expense - 1.334.80 - - - = - 1,334 80
Senvice deficieney charges - 1.235.02 - - - - - 1235.02
Reimbursement of share based payments 1o 25996 20545 = - - 25996 20543
¢mplovees
Business support service 12.00 6.00 - - - - 1208 600
Remuneration 034 - - - - - 034 -
Mote: 1. The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture in the current year or previous year
38 Loans to Directors, Senior Officers and Relatives of Directors

Particulars

Current Year

Previous
Year

Directors and their relatives

Entities associated with directors and their
relaiives

Senior Ofticers and their relatives
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Whizdm Finance Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except share data anid per share data, unless otherwise stated)

39 Disclosure as per RBI Master Direction on Securitisation of Standard Assets, 2021

4

4

[T

Particulars

As on March 31,
2024

As on NMarch 31,
2023

No of SPE's holding assets for securitisation transactions originated by the originator (only the
SPV's relating to g securitization exposures 1o be reported here)

Total amount of securitised assets as per books of SPEs

2,697.21

Total amount of exposures retained by the originator to comply with MRR as on the date of
balance sheet

1) Off-Balance sheet exposures

First Loss

(thers

b) On-Balance sheet exposures

First Loss- Cash collateral

146.20

Others

365 50

Amount of exposures 1o securitisation transactions other than MRR

a) Off-Balanee sheet exposures

1) Exposure te own securilisations

First Loss

Others

11) Exposure to third party securnmisations

First Loss

Others

Sale consideration received for the securitised assets and gain/loss on sale on account of
securitisation

2558 48

Form and quantum (owtstanding value) of services provided by way of, liquidity support, post-
seennbisalion assel servicing, elc.

Performance of facility provided. Please provide seperately for each facility viz Credit
enhancement, liquidity support, servicing agent ete. Mention percent in bracket as of total value
of faeility provided

{a}) Amount pad

(b) Repavment received

(¢) Outstanding amount

Average default rate of portfolios observed i the past. Please provide breakup seperately for ench
assel class 1.e RMBS, Vehicle lvans elc

Amount and number of additienal/top up loan given on same underlving asset, Please provide
breakup seperately for each asset class i.e RMBS, Vehicle loans etc

Investor complaimts (a) Directly/ Indirectly recerved and . (b) Complaints outstanding

Details of assignment transactions undertaken by the Company

Particulars

For the vear ended
March 31, 2024

For the vear ended
March 31, 2023

Number of loans

32,708

Apprevale amount

5,894 43

Sale consideration

8.427.91

Number of transactions

3

Weighted average remaining maturity (in months)

10.09

Weighted average holding penod alter origiation (in months)

6.77

Retention of beneficial cconomic interest

466 52

Coverage of Tangble Seeurity Coverage

Rating wise distribution of rated loans

Number of mstances {transactions) where transferred as agreed o repluce the transterred loans

Mumber of transferred loans replaced

Details of non-performing financial assets purchases/sold

Particulars

Year ended March
31, 2024

Year ended March
31, 2023

i) Number of accounts

ii) Total amount outstanding

Details of inancial assets sold to securitisation/reconstruction company for asset reconstruction

The Company has not sold any financial asset 10 Securitisation/Asset Reconstruction Company [or asset reconstruction during the vear ended

March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023
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Notes to the financial statements for the yvear ended March 31, 2024

(All amounts are in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except share data and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

43 Summary information on complaints received by the NBFCs from customers and from the Offices of Ombudsman

Particulars FY 23-24 FY 22-23
Complaints received by the NBFC from its customers
1 Number of complaints pending at beginning of the yvear - -
2 Number of complaints received during the year' 307 46
3 Number of complaints disposed during the vear 306 46
3.1 OF which, number of complaints rejected by the NBFC - -
4 Number of complaints pending at the end of the year | -
Maintainable complaints received by the NBFC from Office of Ombudsman®
3 Number of mamntainable complaints received by the NBFC from Office of Ombudsman 30 4
5.0 | O 5. number of complaints resolved in favour of the NBFC by Office of Ombudsman 28 4
5.2 | OF3. number of complaints resolved through conciliation/mediation/advisories issued by Office of Ombudsman - -
5.3 | OF5. number of complaints resolved after passing of Awards by Office of Ombudsman against the NBFC 2 -
6 Number of Awards unimplemented within the stipulated time (other than those appealed) - -

I Includes complaints received by NBFC from the office of Ombudsman
2. Maintainable complaints refer to complaints on the grounds specifically mentioned in Integrated Ombudsman Scheme. 2021 (Previously "The
Ombudsman Scheme for Non-Banking Financial Companies. 2018") and covered within the ambit of the Scheme.

Top five grounds of complaints received by the NBFCs from customers

FY 23-24
Grounds of complaints, (i.e. complaints relating to) Number of | Number of | % increase in the | Number of Ofrs,
complaints | complaints number of complaints | number of
pending at | received complaints pending at | complaints
the during the | received over the | the end of | pending
beginning year previous year the year beyond 30
of the year days
1 2 3 4 5 6
Promise To Pay - 153 100% = -
Credit bureau related matters = 74 68% ] -
Settlement Request + 15 100% - <
Paviment Confirmation = 11 100% % -
Bank Charges - 1) 100% - -
FY 22-23
Grounds of complaints, (i.e. complaints relating to) Number of | Number of | % increase in the | Number of Of5,
complaints | complaints number of complaints | oumber of
pending at | received complaints pending at | complaints
the during the | received over the | the end of |  pending
beginning year previous year the year beyond 30
of the year days
1 2 3 4 5 0
Non-observance ol fair practices code - 2 100% - .
Credit bureau related matters - 44 T80% - -

[This space has been intentionally lefi blank]
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Whizdm Finanee Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Allamounts are in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except share data and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

44 Corporate Governance (cont'd):
3) Committees of the Board and their composition
Name of the Committee Terms of Reference
Asset Liability Committee [« Liquidity Risk Management
* Decision on desired maturity profile and mix ol mcremental assets and lablies
+ Sale of assets as a source of funding,
* Management of liquidity Risk
= overseemg the hgquidity positions
* Funding & Capital Planning
* Forecasting and analysing “What If” scenarios relating to liquidity
* Preparation of contingency plans
* Review and approval of Benchmark Rate. 1l any
+ Review and approval of new products

Risk Management + Idenuifying, measuring and monitoring the various risks faced by the Company

Committee * Mitigating various risks associated with functioning of the Company

* To deal with issues relating to credit policy and procedure and manage the credit risk, operational nisk, ete,
* Creation of models that are used for risk measurement from tme to time

* Monitoring implementation of Risk Management Policy and the other policies including Know Y our
Customer & Anti Money Laundering Policy (KYC Poliey)

* Lo review exposure including consumer credit exposure

* Identification, assessment and management of data quality risk

* Such other functions as delegated by the Board or as mandated by RBL. from time Lo time.

Borrowing Commitiee * To avail financial facilities from financial institution(s) / bank(s) or other entities in form of term loan(s),
guarantee(s) or i any other forms (“facilities”). in connection with Company's business requirement,

* To availl inter-corporate loan from any company body corporate.

= Toapply and avail cash management services with various banks

* o assign the receivables in favour of any entity or third party

= To consider and approve avarling of bank guaraniees lrom various banks.

* Lo pledge  hypothecate FDRs as security towards Letter of Credit in favor of third party(s}

+ To avail loan facihities and overdrall Facility from various banks

= To provide inter-corporate loans, make mvestments and provide guarantees or security within the limits as
approved and delegated by the shareholders Board of the Company as per the Act

= To review the hist of signatories for purpose of providing loans, guarantees & 1015 on behall of the
Company.

= To apply and avil corporate credit cards facility from various banks.

« To consider and approve the issue of FDRs from the Company in favor of Banks. for treasury operations,
* To consider and approve the hist of authorized signatories to execute the documents required by various
banks for cheque printing facilities.

* To consuder availing ol credit card facility 1n the name of employees / officials of the Company

* To open and close any required bank accounts and add or delete signatories to bank accounts,

= To open any required trading accounts with other brokers / sub brokers.

* To open any other types of accounts with third parties.

* To amend or change the signatories in relation to items above.

* To allot debentures of the Company pursuant to issue of debentures, approved by the Board.

* To authorize o represent the Company in matters related to above.

+ Delegate specific authority to the Company s officials 1o execute the borrowing or finance fransaction
documents, create security etc.

Name of Member of Committee since Capacity Number of meetings of the No. of shares
Directar Held Attended held in the
NBFC
Puneet Agarwal |1 Risk Management Committee |1 Member RMC -4 |RMC -4 Meetings -
(RMC - Since 21/03,2022 Meetings
Sanjay Aggarwal| |, Asset Liability Committee 1. Member ALCO - 4 [ALCO - 4 Meetings | Share (Asa
[ALCD) -Since 15042021 2 Member Meetings |RMC - 4 Meetings nominee of
2. Risk Management Committee |3, Chairman RMC -4 |BC - 25 Meetings Whiedm
[RMC) - Since 21/03/2022 Meetings Innovations
3 Borrowing Committee (BC) - BC - 25 Privitie Limited)
Since 19082023 Meetings
MNagara) I. Borrowing Committee - Since |1 Member BC-25 |BC-25 Meetings -
Subrahmanya 19/08/2023 Meetings

[TTus sparee has been mtentionally Toft biank ]
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44 Corporate Governance (vont'd):

4

47

General Body Meetings

Type of Meeting (Annual/ Extra-Ordinary)

Date and Place

Special resolutions
passed

Annual General Meeting

29/09:2023 & Registered
Office

1) Authorisation for issuance of
NCD through Povme

bl
p

Extra Ovdmary General Meeting

27'06°2025 & Registered
Office

1} Authorisation for issuance of
NCD through Privane
Placement

Extra Ordinary General Meeting

200072023 & Repistered
Office

1) Authorization for issuance of
NCD through Private
Placement

Extra Ordinary General Meeting

10082023 & Registered
Oflice

1) Authorisation for issuance of
NCD through Privine
Placement

Extra Ordinary General Meeting

208/2023 & Registered
Office

1) Authorisation for issuance of
NCD through Private
Placement

Fxtra Ordinary Genernl Meeting

01702/2024 & Repistered

Oifice

NI special resolution

Capital

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 | As at March 31, 2023 _|
1) CRAR {"0) 26.97% 14.78%
i) Tier | Capital ("o} 26.67% 44 .53%
iii) Tier Il Capital (%) () 30%

iv) Amonnt of subordinated debt rised as Tier 11 Captal

v) Amount ruwised by issue of perpetual Debt

]
u.mgl
|

Particulars

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

Value of Investments

(1) Gross Value of Investmems

La) In Indw

() Outside India,

(i) Provisions fr Depreciation

(i) I India

(b} Outside Inchia,

(i1} Met Value of Investments

(a) In India

(b} Onntsacde India,

Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on in

i) Opening balance

i) Add - Provisions made during the year

(1) Less . Write-off / wrile-back of excess provisions during the year - -
(1v) Closing balance = x
Provisions and Contingencies

Break up of 'Provisions and Contingencies' shown under the head Expenditure in
Profit and Loss Account

Year ended March 31, 2024

Year ended March 31, 2023

Provision for Standard Assets 695,23 69 83
Provision towards NPA 658,70 1.051.23
Provision made lowards lncome tax 1.242.16 31540
Other provisions and ¢ gencies (with details)

Provision for gratuty 347 314
Provision lor comg 1 absences 18 43 11.4%

Concentration of advances, exposures and NPA

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 Asut March 31, 2023

Concentration of advances
Total Advances to twenty largest borrowers 1400 L0000
Percemtage of Advances to twenty largest borrowers 1o Total Advances of the applicable NBFC R 027%
Concentration of exposures

Total exposure 1o twenty lorgest borrowers’ customers 140,00 100,00
Percentage of exposures 1o twenly largest bortowers/'customers to Total exposures of the 0.07% 0.27%

pplicable NBFC on borrowers customers
Concentration of NPA

lotal Exposure o top four NPA accounts 12,99 1040

[ s spurce has been mientionally feji bicank f
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49 Sector-wise NPAs

Sector As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
{Percentage of NPAs to Total (Percentage of NPAs to Total
Advances in that Sector) Advances in that Sector)
Aericuloure and allied activities - -
MSME
Corporate bormowers =
Services - -
Unsecured personal loans 1 26% 342%
Auto loans = =
Other personal loans -
50 Novement of NPAs
Particulars As at March 21 2024 As at March 31 2023
(i) Net NPAS to Net Advances (%) 0.00% 0.00%
(i) Movement of NFAs (Gross)
Opening balance 125000 198 78
Additions during the vear 1031263 324932
Reductions during the year 9633 95 2198 11
Clesing balance 1 908 70 125000
(iii) Movement of Net NPAs
Qpening balance

Additons during the year -

Reductions during the year

Closing balance -
{iv) Movemeat of provisions for NPAs (excluding provisiens on standard assets)

Opening balance 1250 00
Provisions made during the year 1031265
Write-off / write-back of excess provisions 265395
Closing balance 1 908 70

51 Details of non-compliagce with companies act
The Company has not noticed any default in compliance of provisions of Companies Act, 2013 during the financial year ended March 31, 2024 and 2023
respectively

52 Detaiks of Breach of covenant
There was no breach of covenant of the loan avaled or debt security issued during the financial year ended March 31, 2024 and 2023 respectively

53 Divergence in asset classification provisioning
No divergence in asset classification and provisioning was observed by RBI during the financial year ended March 31, 2024 and 2023 respectively

34 Declaration of dividemd
The Company has not declared dividend during the financial year ended March 31, 2024 z2nd 2023 respectively

55 Pledglug of securities
The Company has not pledged any securities during the financial year ended March 31, 2024 and 2023 respectively

56 [ssue of Perpetual Debt Instruments
The Company has not issued any perpetual debt instruments during the financial year ended March 31, 2024 and 2023 respectively

57 Derivatives
The Company does not have any exposure to derivatives as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023

58 Details of financiog of parent company products
The Company has not financed any parent company products as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023

59 Details of single borrower limit (SGL) / Group borvower limit {GBL} exceeded by applicable NBFC
The Company has not exceed single borrower limit / Gronp borrower limit as at March 31. 2024 and March 31, 2023

60 Unsecured Advaaces
The Company has not given any Loans and Advances against iniangible securities as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023

61 Registration obtained from other financial sector regulators

198 78
124933
219811
125000

The Company is registered with Reserve Bank of India. Besides Reserve Bank of India , Company is registered with Minisiry of Corporate Affairs “MCA”, Finance

Intedigence Unit “FIU" and CERSAI

62 Overseas Assets (for those with Joint Ventures and Subsidiaries abroad)
The Company does net have overseas assels as at iMarch 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023

63 Off-balance Sheet SPVs sponsored
The Company has not sponsored any 5P Vs as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023

{This spuce hay been intentionally leff blonk] [
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64 Credit Rating Details

Type of Instrument Name of Rating Agency Date of rating Rating Borrowing limit Valid up to
imposed by rating
agency
Non convertible debentures India Rating and Research Pvt Ltd, 13-Mar-24|INDBBB+/Stable 10,000 12-Mar-25
Non convertible debentures India Rating and Research Pvt. Ltd. 13-Mar-24|INDBBB+/Stable 35.000 12-Mar-25
Commercial paper India Rating and Research Pvt. Ltd, 13-Mar-24|IND A2 6.500 12-Mar-25
Commcrcial paper India Rating and Research Pvt. Ltd. 13-Mar-24|IND A2 5,000 12-Mar-25
Bank Lines India Rating and Research Pvt. Ltd. 13-Mar-24|INDBBB+/Stable 40,000 12-Mar-25
Bank Lines India Rating and Research Pvt. Ltd. 13-Mar-24|INDBBB+/Stable 10,000 12-Mar-25

65 Migration of credit rating
There was no migration in credit rating during year ended March 31. 2024 and 2023 respectively

66 Other Statutory Information

(1) The Company does not have any Benami property. where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami
property under Benami Transactions ( Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988).

(i) The Company does not have any material transactions with companies struck off under Section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or Section 560 of
Companies Act, 1956 during the financial year.

(i) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period.

(iv) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

(v) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the
understanding that the Intermediary shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(vi) The Company has not received any fund from any personis) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding { whether
recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the F unding Party {Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(vii) The Company has no such transaction which is recorded in the books of account, that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in
the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

(viii) The Company is not declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority
67 Previous year figures have been regrouped / reclassified, where necessary, to confirm to this year’s classification.
As per our report of even date

For S C Mehra & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm registration number: 106105W / W 100305

..

e Director €60
DIN: 00931994

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Whizdm Finance Private Lj

Rishit Jain
Partner
Membership No: 238242

Puneet Agn
Director
DIN: 06921984
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o\

N
Ankit Kumar Jain
Company Secretary

Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 21, 2024

Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 21, 2024
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